
CEA received the following questions in response to our RFQ #08-19. We have provided answers below. 
 

Has this RFQ been issued to help the CEA find a new contractor, or because you are unable to 
continue working with your current contractor without rebidding the contract, or are there are other 
circumstances that can inform how these services were managed in the past? 
CEA contracts are generally entered into for defined terms, and new procurement processes are 
undertaken periodically as contract terms expire.  This is the case here, and the most recent post 
event/crisis contractor contract has expired. CEA has evaluated its needs and determined the scope for 
work CEA would like to be performed in 2020 and beyond, and this RFQ is the result of that process.  

Can you confirm that approximately 10% of California residents currently have earthquake coverage—
and that the number is down from approximately 30% in 1996?  
Yes, this approximate current number is accurate (10-13%). The take up rate was higher decades ago, 
prior to the Northridge event, after which the statutorily-required scope of coverage for residential 
earthquake insurance was modified and insurance companies reevaluated the risk, generally resulting in 
higher rates than were previously offered. Learn more on the History page of the CEA website. 

Where can we find the most reliable map showing the locations of residential properties currently 
covered by earthquake insurance policies? 
This is confidential propriety information that is not subject to public disclosure.  

Is the information of top insurance companies writing earthquake coverage accurate as posted here 
on insurancejournal.com: 
https://www.insurancejournal.com/news/national/2019/08/21/537645.htm 
CEA would only have insight on our participating insurers’ (PIs) books of business. See a list of our PIs 
here: https://www.earthquakeauthority.com/Insurance-Policies/Participating-Residential-Insurers. As 
for the broader California earthquake insurance market information, the California Department of 
Insurance is the repository for such information. 

How many earthquake policy claims have been submitted in the past 20 years, based on which 
seismic events, and who are the top 20 insurance agents and adjusters who managed those claims? 
Some of the topics mentioned here consist of confidential proprietary information that is not subject to 
public disclosure. CEA will share this information, as necessary, with the contractor who is selected (but 
not prior to that selection), under appropriate confidentiality/nondisclosure agreements.  

We have noted Chinese and Spanish language information on earthquakeauthority.com. In how many 
languages does CEA currently communicate its mission and message through advertising, public 
awareness and public relations efforts? Will submission packets to RFQ #08-19 receive higher scores if 
they provide post-event, crisis-communication and reputation risk services for non-English speaking 
residents, media and policyholders? 
CEA offers information in English, Spanish, and Chinese. CEA would encourage those who submit for 
RFQ #08-19 to propose options for providing services to residents, media and policyholders in all of 
those languages.  

Is CEA willing to share any public opinion research conducted in the past five years that helps evaluate 
the CEA’s current reputation perception and what reputational risks may exist today? 

https://www.earthquakeauthority.com/About-CEA/CEA-History
https://www.insurancejournal.com/news/national/2019/08/21/537645.htm
https://www.earthquakeauthority.com/Insurance-Policies/Participating-Residential-Insurers


CEA will share this information with the contractor who is selected, but is not able to share it prior to 
that time.  

The information on earthquakeauthority.com makes clear the CEA’s claim-paying capacity ($17.7 
billion) as of September 30, 2019. It also clearly notes that “no insurance company maintains claim-
paying capacity equal to the total insured value.” Has CEA completed an organizational risk 
assessment under a “demand surge” scenario? Is a demand surge risk scenario assessment an item 
CEA will expect for the 30-points available under Work Plan in the submission-evaluation criteria? 
CEA does take demand surge considerations into account in its modeling analysis and in its risk 
assessment. This assessment will not be part of this procurement and is not an item CEA expects to be 
covered in the submitted Work Plan. 

What specific measures of success within “Work Plan and Work Samples” will you use to evaluate 
submission packages under the 30-point rubric? 
CEA will consider providing feedback on this information with the finalists who are selected, but is not 
able to share it prior to that time. 

The RFQ states that CEA has already “developed a strategic response plan for post-earthquake- event 
scenarios” and “created messaging materials and content for use by the CEA in post-event 
dissemination of information and assistance.” Does the CEA consider the plan, messaging materials 
and content to be largely complete, with only minor adjustments and updates needed, or will the 
contractor be expected to significantly overhaul or add to this body of work? 
Mainly complete, but CEA is open to considering suggested revisions/additions from the successful 
contractor.  

When did CEA first complete a crisis communications response strategy, and how often is it updated? 
The response strategy has been a continual work-in-progress for several years. It has evergreen 
components but is constantly revisited and updated.  

How does CEA’s current communications plan utilize regularly scheduled activities and events (i.e. The 
Great California ShakeOut), and what is included in those activities and events that constitutes public 
education on what policyholders can expect after an earthquake? 
 Regularly scheduled activities and events like The Great California ShakeOut are a key component of 
CEA’s annual programming and are used for the “Education” portion of CEA’s mission.  The paid 
advertising, promotion of partner messaging, and content across channels that accompany these events 
constitute a portion of the public education on what policyholders can expect after an earthquake. 

With what frequency is the CEA currently coordinating crisis planning with first responders, including 
the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services? 
CEA is primarily a provider of insurance, and is not considered a “first responder.” Having said that, CEA 
is in frequent contact with the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES), as Cal OES 
and CEA have collaborated on earthquake loss mitigation efforts, and its Director is the Governor’s 
appointed designee for CEA’s Governing Board.  

The Services to Be Provided include advice on advertising. Will the work of producing advertising 
content and ad buying be handled under this contract or by a different CEA agency? 
The production and buying will be handled by a different contractor. 



What communications channels have you found most effective for engaging citizens in communities 
most at risk for earthquakes?  
CEA relies most heavily on television, radio, digital advertising, website, social media, and agent 
outreach. 

Will response submissions packets receive higher scores if they include detailed advertising and media 
plans related to post-event, crisis-communications strategies and tactics? 
Contractors are welcome to submit high-level recommendations, but detailed advertising and media 
plans are not necessary. 

Can you share the referenced “strategic response plan for post-earthquake-event scenarios” that was 
created? 
CEA will share it with the contractor who is selected, but prefers not to share it ahead of time. CEA 
prefers to see what submitters might propose organically, without being prejudiced by or influenced by 
CEA’s current plans.  
 
What is the length of this contract (1 year, 3 years, etc.)? 
TBD.  CEA’s initial contracts are typically for two or three years, but shorter or longer terms might be 
mutually agreed to. 

What is the anticipated start date? 
The start date would be as soon as CEA selects a successful candidate, and the candidate is able to 
negotiate a contract with CEA. 

What is the maximum budget, per year, that CEA has allocated for this work?   
CEA’s allocation of its expenses to budgets may vary from year to year, depending on the scope of 
projects or initiatives for any given year. CEA will share this information with the contractor who is 
selected, but not prior. 

Should the budget proposal include an estimate for practical planning and reputation management, 
and a separate budget for crisis response (as needed, post-incident)? 
Yes. 

Is there currently an incumbent for this specific scope of work?  If so, who is the firm and how long 
have they been engaged with CEA? 
The most recent contract has expired, so there is not currently an incumbent.  

Who are the other PR, marketing and design agencies that CEA currently works with?   
CEA will share this information with the contractor who is selected, but not prior.  

As part of this scope of work, do you anticipate the winning agency will coordinate with your other 
PR, marketing and design agencies on content development, messaging, etc.? 
CEA expects the successful firm to review work produced by these agencies and learn and understand 
CEA’s messaging. Work produced will be at the direction of CEA and will be complementary to, but not 
necessarily coordinated with, CEA’s other contractors/agencies.  

On page 7, section VI, items 3-6, you outline the contractor should “advise on” deliverables such as 
earned media, advertisements and fact sheets, speeches, website content, town hall meetings, table 
top response drills, etc.  Does this mean the consultant would simply make recommendations and 



review content and deliverables that is prepared by another group or agency, or do you expect the 
contractor will actually create and implement these specific deliverables? 
CEA has an advertising firm, so the contractor would review/advise on that component. For the other 
examples, the contractor would in some cases offer advice, and in other cases might do the hands-on 
work.  

Do you anticipate regular check-in meetings and proactive strategy sessions as part of this scope?  If 
so, how frequently would you like to hold those meetings/check ins? 
This would vary depending on work/project status, but to begin, CEA would anticipate onboarding 
meetings and then would likely transition to once-per-week meetings with relevant team members and 
regular contact with the contract manager.  

On page 4, there is a reference to B2B and B2C support in the event of a crisis. Can you explain in 
more detail what level of support and outreach you would need to these groups? Is there an example 
of how CEA has engaged with these groups in the past around a crisis? 
B2C support means outreach to California consumers (non-policyholders, general public, etc.) and 
current CEA policyholders. B2B support means outreach to CEA participating insurers and their agents; 
the CEA Governing Board; industry professionals; and other organizations that might collaborate with 
CEA. An example would be CEA sending proactive email communications to agents after the Ridgecrest 
quake, using search term data from the CEA website, analytics, and call center communications to 
create customized messages that addressed FAQs, myths, misunderstandings, and conveyed necessary 
information in quick and efficient manner.  

Does CEA have a current or past example of a proactive crisis communications plan? If so, can you 
provide? 
CEA will share it with the contractor who is selected, but prefers not to share it ahead of time. CEA 
prefers to see what submitters might propose organically without being prejudiced by or influenced be 
CEA’s current plans. 

Is there a format CEA prefers is used to show the proposed fees and expenses? 
No, so long as the fee and expense proposal is expressed concisely and clearly. 

Are there other crisis not generated by a large magnitude earthquake that CEA expects would fall 
under this scope of work? 
The Statement of Work for this RFQ includes all types of crises (communications) and reputational risks, 
not just post-earthquake scenarios.  

Can CEA expound on what it expects the consultant will provide for advising on items 2 through 6 on 
page 7 under “Services to Be Provided”? 
CEA is looking for subject matter expertise to aid CEA in producing itself, or for contractor’s team to 
produce, these materials, plans, or actions. This can be provided through insight, examples of products 
created for other organizations, case studies, etc.  

Are any creative services (design, etc.) needed for materials creation or will CEA handle design needs 
internally? 
CEA has an internal design team. 



Please provide a copy of the contract provisions (exhibit 1) referenced on page 9 in the RFQ. 
The reference to Exhibit 1 was included in error, as the Terms and Conditions were not included as an 
exhibit to this RFQ. Therefore, responders are free to respond “N/A” with respect to this topic. The final 
contract that is entered into as a result of this RFQ process will control the terms and conditions of the 
contractual relationship between CEA and successful proposer. 

 


